
Workforce Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 12 November 2019

TIME: 12.00 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting Held on 24 September 2019 (Pages 1 - 2)

4  Decision Items (Part 1 - Open to the Public) 

4a Transitioning at Work Commitment (Pages 3 - 10)

4b Leadership Post - City Solicitor (Pages 11 - 14)

5  Any Other Business (Part 1) 

6  Exclusion of the Public 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 
information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 
Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
Members are recommended to agree the necessary resolutions 
excluding the public from the meeting during consideration of this 
item. At the time this agenda is published no representations have 
been received that this part of the meeting should be open to the 
public.

7  Decision Items (Part 2 - Closed to the Public) 

7a Director of Public Health Update (Pages 15 - 18)

Public Document Pack



8  Any Other Business (Part 2) 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 793 3316
Carol.eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



WORKFORCE PANEL

Held on Tuesday 24 September 2019

Meeting started at 11:15 am
Meeting ended at 12:20 pm

PRESENT: Councillor Paula Boshell, Deputy City Mayor in the chair

Councillors Derek Antrobus, Gina Reynolds and David Lancaster

OFFICERS: Jim Taylor Chief Executive
Sam Betts Assistant Director HR & OD
Kathy Kennedy Project Manager
David Smith Internal Audit
Mike Relph Democratic Services

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor and 
Councillors Ferguson, Hinds, Kelly and Merry.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 27th August 2019 were approved as a
 correct record.

4. [MY] WORK - ENABLING OUR PEOPLE TO BE SMARTER IN HOW THEY
WORK

The Strategic Director - Service Reform submitted a report providing an 
overview of [My]Work, an initiative aimed at delivering a fundamentally 
different approach to how, when and where people within Salford City Council, 
worked. It aimed to support employees to balance their responsibilities in and 
out of work and, at the same time, increase performance and productivity in 
delivering services to the residents of Salford.

A general discussion with regard to the initiative and its aims took place, in 
which the following specific issues were raised:-

 The future of a traditional “9 to 5” working day. It was indicated the 
emphasis was less about working hours and more about a move away 
from a physical presence in Salford Civic Centre, or other council 
locations, wherever possible, subject to the particular demands and 
expectations of the individual services concerned being met.

 The need for the provision of appropriate and up to date IT equipment 
to enable the realisation of the aims of [My]Work.

 Ensuring the outward facing image of the Council was maintained.
 The ongoing assessment of staff car parking requirements at Salford 

Civic Centre and other Council locations.
Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 The monitoring of absenteeism and the positive impact it was 
anticipated [My]Work work would have on the already reducing rates 
now being recorded in this regard.

 Salford City Council’s duty of care and other statutory responsibilities, 
in ensuring the health and safety of its employees who were 
undertaking their duties from home, or other non traditional 
“work/office” environments.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the report be noted 

(2) THAT support be given to [My]Work as Salford City Council’s
 approach to smart working, together with its implementation and roll out 
 across all directorates and for all employees.

5. WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 2019

The Monitoring Officer and Head of Audit submitted a joint report indicating 
Salford City Council’s Whistleblowing Policy was reviewed regularly, to ensure 
it remained consistent with good practice, emergent legal requirements, and 
effectively supported the Council’s counter fraud strategy. With these 
principles in mind, the Policy had been revised to make it more user friendly 
and ensure consistency with the good practice model promoted nationally by 
Protect, the whistleblowing charity. The principles, meaning and associated 
processes remained unchanged and the policy was consistent with the latest 
legal and regulatory requirements.

RESOLVED: THAT the revised Salford City Council Whistleblowing Policy 
(2019 Update), as now submitted, be approved.

Page 2



1

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES AND 
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

TO THE WORKFORCE PANEL

ON 

12TH NOVEMBER 2019

TITLE:  EMPLOYEES TRANSITIONING AT WORK

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Workforce Panel approve the Employees Transitioning at Work 
Commitment.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Building an inclusive workplace where all of our people feel valued and have the 
opportunity to be heard, as well as opportunities to develop their own career is 
important in Salford.  We recognise that every person is different but equal and we 
are committed to developing a culture which respects individuals, appreciates 
difference and allows everyone regardless of background to reach their full potential.

Our aim is to positively support the whole workforce regardless of gender, age, race, 
religion, marital status, sexual orientation, pregnancy/maternity, gender identity, 
gender transition, disability or caring responsibility.

The Employees Transitioning at Work commitment sets out Salford City Council’s 
approach to supporting employees who have transitioned or are transitioning at work 
ensuring that they are treated with dignity and respect. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

KEY DECISION: YES / NO

Page 3

Agenda Item 4a



2

DETAILS:

1. Background and context

Our people are at the heart of delivering our vision for “a better and fairer Salford for 
all’. Salford is a place for everyone to thrive – a place where everyone cares and 
everyone counts.  Building an inclusive workplace where all of our people feel valued 
and have the opportunity to be heard, as well as opportunities to develop their own 
career is important in Salford.  We recognise that every person is different but equal 
and we are committed to developing a culture which respects individuals, appreciates 
difference and allows everyone regardless of background to reach their full potential.

As part of our commitment to building an inclusive workplace we have been working 
with Stonewall, Europe’s largest lesbian, gay, bi and trans charity, for over two years 
to consider how we can continue to develop our workforce practices and procedures 
to be more inclusive for everyone. 

This work has involved an initial review of policies and procedures together with the 
annual completion of the employer index survey covering a broad range of areas 
which are then assessed by Stonewall. One of the recommendations from this work 
has been to develop a transitioning at work policy. 

We recognise that our trans employees contribute a variety of experiences to the 
organisation and are committed to fully supporting trans employees at work, ensuring 
that we have appropriate support mechanisms in place for employees if they have 
transitioned or intend to transition whilst working for the Council. 

2. Approach

In line with our principle of co-design the Transitioning at Work Commitment has 
been developed working closely with a range of stakeholders including workforce 
representatives through the Salford 100, the LGBT staff group and trade union 
representatives. A number of best practice documents have also been considered 
including the UNISON model policy. 

As part of this process consideration was given to the development of a policy 
document.  However, it was recognised that transitioning involves different steps for 
different people and there are many different routes individuals may want to take in 
order to transition. Therefore, we need to ensure that the timescales, support, activity 
and communication is driven and led by the person transitioning. An organisational 
commitment, supported by manager guidance, has therefore been developed to 
provide a clear statement on the position of the council and which should be used as 
a framework whilst providing flexibility to enable managers to provide appropriate 
support on an individual basis.

Whilst developing the commitment feedback has been received with regards to the 
provision for paid time off for transition related appointments and treatment. At the 
current time the commitment and associated manager guidance does not specifically 
cover arrangements for paid time off.  However, a review of the current special leave 
arrangements will be undertaken, working with the leadership team, trade unions and 

Page 4



3

the wider workforce, to ensure that all provisions for paid time off are fully inclusive 
and fair. 

3. Next Steps

We will continue to work with our LGBT staff group regarding awareness raising and 
appropriate training for managers given the key role that they play in supporting 
employees. The LGBT staff group are developing frequently asked questions to 
accompany the manager’s guide. 

It is intended to launch the commitment during Trans Awareness week 12th – 19th 
November supported by a communications plan including lived experience examples 
to raise awareness across the workforce.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Mary Sutton, Head of Litigation and 
Employment Group Tel: 0161 234 3465

The proposals contained in this report have positive legal implications and will assist 
the Council in complying with its obligations under the Equality Act 2010.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance 
Manager Tel: 0161 793 2574

There are no financial implications contained within the report

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR & OD Manager

Are contained within the body of the report.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR & OD Manager  
Email Catherine.sharples@salford.gov.uk 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Page 5

mailto:Catherine.sharples@salford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Commitment to supporting employees 
transitioning at work

This commitment sets out Salford City Council’s approach to supporting our 
employees who have transitioned or are transitioning at work ensuring that they are 
treated with dignity and respect.

Through our values and leadership behaviours and this commitment being effectively 
applied we will work to create a workplace that provides a supportive environment for 
trans employees and create a culture where trans employees feel able to thrive and 
are well supported during and after any process of transition.

Our people are at the heart of delivering our vision for “a better and fairer Salford for 
all’.  Salford is a place for everyone to thrive – a place where everyone cares and 
everyone counts. Building an inclusive workplace where all of our people feel valued 
and have the opportunity to be heard, as well as opportunities to develop their own 
career is important.  We recognise that every person is different but equal and we 
are committed to developing a culture which respects individuals, appreciates 
difference and allows everyone regardless of background to reach their full potential.

Our aim is to positively support the workforce regardless of gender, age, race, 
religion, marital status, sexual orientation, pregnancy/maternity, gender identity, 
gender transition, disability and caring responsibility.

Aligned with our values and leadership behaviours we are all responsible for 
delivering this aim through demonstrating kindness and compassion for others. We 
are committed to challenging ourselves to see situations through different lenses and 
recognising barriers that people face. We will take time to understand and reflect on 
our own unconscious bias and will not be afraid to challenge. We will have leaders 
who act as role models and are proactive around diversity and inclusion to create a 
culture where people trust and support each other.

Introduction

We recognise that our trans employees contribute a variety of experience to the 
organisation and working with the trans community has a positive impact on our 
organisational priorities and values. 

We understand that transitioning is a unique process for each individual and may 
include any number of changes to a person’s life. There is no ‘right’ or ‘wrong’ or 

Page 7



June 2019

2

‘single’ way to transition. It may involve a medical intervention, but not all trans 
people want or are able to have this. 

Transitioning could also involve dressing differently, a change of name, changing 
official documents, telling friends and family that you are transitioning, or a number of 
other things. 

The start of or intent to transition will be different for everyone it is about the 
individual. After an individual transitions they may not identify as trans, they may 
simply see the process as being part of their past and not their current identity. This 
is a personal decision and confidentiality should be respected at all times.

We are committed to fully supporting trans employees at work and ensuring that we 
have the appropriate support mechanisms in place for employees if they have 
transitioned or intend to transition whilst working for the organisation. 

We recognise that managers have an important role in this. If an employee discloses 
that they are trans or intending to transition at work, their manager should aim to 
make this as smooth as possible.

Page 8



June 2019

3

Our commitment to trans employees and transitioning at work:

 We value the unique contribution of all employees, including individuals who 
identify outside of the gender binary. 

 We understand that there are many different identities which fall under the trans 
umbrella.

 We will treat anybody’s gender identity, regardless of the law, with dignity and 
respect.

 We consider any gender identities outside of the gender binary as a protected 
characteristic under the Equality Act 2010. 

 We will fully support an employee’s transition.

 We will keep a person’s trans status in the strictest confidence in line with the 
person’s wishes and the law.

 We will ensure that the timescales, support, activity and communication will be 
driven and led by the person transitioning at work.

 We recognise that transitioning involves different steps and activities for different 
people, and there are many different routes individuals may want to take in order 
to transition.

 We will promote and celebrate awareness of trans employees, and equip our 
leaders and workforce at all levels to support them.

 We will ensure that trans employees in our workforce can access information and 
advice about their rights and the support made available by the organisation.

 We will provide trans employees with opportunities and space for mutual and 
peer to peer support.

 We will co-design and review our workplace support and policies with trans 
employees to ensure that support is flexible and responsive to their needs.

 We will monitor and evaluate the impact of our commitment on the wellbeing of 
our trans employees.

All Salford City Council employees are required to treat colleagues and members of 
the public in an inclusive and respectful manner regardless of their gender identity or 
gender transition.

The council is opposed to and will not tolerate any forms of discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation, and bullying. Any such incidents or complaints on the 
grounds of gender identity, gender history, trans status or gender expression will be 
fully investigated. The council’s Grievance and Dignity at Work policy includes 
specific reference to gender identity and gender transition.

Page 9



June 2019

4

Promotion of trans equality

In addition to ensuring that trans employees are fully supported, we will demonstrate 
our commitment to trans equality in the following ways:

 Including trans equality as a core part of the organisation’s equality agenda.
 Ensuring that all training courses that are delivered are fully inclusive of trans 

people.
 Marking important dates for the trans community, such as Trans Day of Visibility 

(31st March), IDAHOBIT (17th May), Manchester Pride (August) Transgender 
Awareness Week (November) and Transgender Day of Remembrance (20th 
November). 

 Including trans people in publicity and marketing materials (with permission).
 Monitoring the implementation of this commitment and associated guidance.

Further information

This commitment is supplemented by separate guidance with regards to definitions 
and terminology together with guidance for managers on supporting employees 
transitioning at work which are modelled on elements of the UNISON Model Trans 
Equality Guide and Stonewalls recommended best practice for trans inclusive 
policies. 

We have a LGBT staff group which is open to anyone who identifies themselves as 
lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender. It aims to provide a support mechanism for 
employees and to work with people to improve policies, practices and procedures 
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/social-zone/networking/staff-equality-groups/lgbt-
staff-group/ 

Page 10

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/social-zone/networking/staff-equality-groups/lgbt-staff-group/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/social-zone/networking/staff-equality-groups/lgbt-staff-group/


1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR SERVICE REFORM

TO THE WORKFORCE PANEL

ON 12TH NOVEMBER 2019

TITLE: LEADERSHIP POST – CITY SOLICITOR 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Workforce Panel agrees the membership of the appointment panel 
for the post of City Solicitor;

2. That the appointment panel be delegated to agree the final details of the 
recruitment and selection arrangements as follows:
(i) Agree the role profile and job requirements.
(ii) Agree an external recruitment approach.
(iii) Agree the detail of the selection process.
(iv) Agree the use of external search and support for the process.
(v) Select a suitable candidate and make a recommendation to approve their 

appointment to full Council.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This report sets out the proposed approach and process for the recruitment, selection 
and appointment to the post of City Solicitor, following the planned retirement of the 
current post holder in May 2020.
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

KEY DECISION: YES / NO

DETAILS:

Page 11

Agenda Item 4b



2

1. Introduction 

This post was established in 2015 in line with recommendations from the Audit and 
Accounts Committee to ensure that lawful decision making and governance 
arrangements are in place.  This created a hybrid arrangement with the benefits of a 
qualified solicitor or barrister as an internal legal adviser, taking a lead role on 
constitutional and other matters and complements the shared legal arrangements 
with a dedicated on site resource.

The City Solicitor is also the statutory Monitoring Officer for the Council.  The 
Monitoring Officer is a statutory appointment under the provisions of Section 5 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

The post holder is responsible for the legal and governance division which will 
include:

 Democratic services (including elections)
 Coroners
 Registrars
 Client management for the shared legal service with Manchester City Council

The post has been evaluated under the job evaluation scheme for Local Government 
Chief Officers and Senior Managers.  The salary scale, as determined by the 
outcome of this exercise, is £70,883 - £77,972 per annum in line with Band E of the 
agreed senior pay structure.

The appointment will be in accordance with the JNC for Chief Officer terms and 
conditions.

2. Recruitment Arrangements

The Council Constitution states that where the Council proposes to make an external 
appointment of a chief officer or deputy chief officer, the Council or its Workforce 
Panel will establish a Committee or Sub-Committee to act as the appointment panel. 

In respect of this post, it is suggested that the Panel be convened from the 
membership of the Workforce Panel as follows:-

 Lead Member for Finance and Support Services
 City Mayor
 Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative

The Panel will be advised by the Chief Executive, the Strategic Director for Service 
Reform and a senior legal adviser.

The Appointment Panel will have delegated responsibility to agree the final details of 
the recruitment and selection arrangements as follows:
(a) Agree the role profile and job requirements.
(b) Agree an external recruitment approach.
(c) Agree the detail of the selection process.

Page 12



3

(d) Agree the use of external search and support for the process.
(e) Select a suitable candidate and make a recommendation to approve their 

appointment to full Council.

It is proposed that this post is advertised on an external basis in the MJ and the 
greater.jobs website with external support for the executive search process.

3. Leading Salford

The #LeadingSalford leadership framework has been developed with clear 
expectations of leaders and managers in Salford. This framework is intended to 
address the issue of clarity of expectations in terms of how leaders and managers 
operate and their behaviours. It is underpinned by a consistent approach to 
leadership development and has been designed to enable everybody to understand 
what it means to be a leader in Salford. 

Effective leaders and managers are critical to the success of our reform agenda and 
therefore investment in developing their skills is essential.  

The framework is based on values-based leadership and describes the behaviour 
required for leadership of self, others, outcomes and the way forward. There are four 
main components to the framework - leadership behaviours, management skills, 
development activities and our values. The values based leadership element is at the 
heart of the framework to ensure that all of our leadership expectations are grounded 
in modelling and embedding the values in the way managers and their teams work. 
Effective leaders are values driven and trustworthy, their behaviour is consistent and 
ethical and they follow through and deliver on commitments. 

The #LeadingSalford leadership framework and expected behaviours are now the 
cornerstone by which leadership roles are designed and how we recruit and select 
our leaders.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Gareth James, Head of People, Place and 
Regulation, Legal Services email: g.james1@manchester.gov.uk telephone: 0161 
234 3725

Page 13



4

The Officer Employment Procedure Rules set out the procedure for the appointment 
of the Monitoring Officer.  The appointment panel must be politically balanced and 
contain one Member of the Cabinet.  

Workforce Panel can be satisfied that the proposals contained in this report are lawful 
and that the recruitment proposals concerning the City Solicitor are in line with 
Council’s constitution.

Once the recruitment has been concluded, the appointment of the Monitoring Officer 
will be subject to the approval of full Council.  The Annex 1 procedure, whereby the 
Assistant Director of HROD writes to each Member of the Cabinet in order to give 
them the right to object to the appointment before it takes effect, will also apply.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Are contained within the body of the report.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Samantha Betts, Assistant Director for HR & OD
Email: Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk Telephone: 0161 607 8602

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Page 14

mailto:Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 7a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 24 September 2019
	4a Transitioning at Work Commitment
	Commitment to Employees Transitioning at Work

	4b Leadership Post - City Solicitor
	7a Director of Public Health Update

